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agreement, following the Consolidated
Rules of Practice, 40 CFR section
22.13(b), on June 1, 2001 (In Re:
WorldCom, Inc., Docket No. CWA-HQ-
2001-6001). This consent agreement is
subject to public notice and comment
under CWA section 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C.
section 1321(b)(6). EPA is expanding
this opportunity for public comment to
all other aspects of this consent
agreement.

Under CWA section 311(b)(6)(A), 33
U.S.C. 1321 (b)(6)(A), any owner,
operator, or person in charge of a vessel,
onshore facility, or offshore facility from
which oil is discharged in violation of
the CWA section 311 (b)(3), 33 U.S.C.
1321 (b)(3), or who fails or refuses to
comply with any regulations that have
been issued under CWA section 311(j),
33 U.S.C. 1321(j), may be assessed an
administrative civil penalty of up to
$137,500 by EPA. Class II proceedings
under CWA section 311(b)(6) are
conducted in accordance with 40 CFR
Part 22.

Under CAA section 113(d), the
Administrator may issue an
administrative order assessing a civil
penalty against any person who has
violated an applicable implementation
plan or any other requirement of the
Act, including any rule, order, waiver,
permit or plan. Proceedings under CAA
section 113(d) are conducted in
accordance with 40 CFR Part 22.

Under EPCRA section 325, the
Administrator may issue an
administrative order assessing a civil
penalty against any person who has
violated applicable emergency planning
or right to know requirements, or any
other requirement of the Act.
Proceedings under EPCRA section 325
are conducted in accordance with 40
CFR Part 22.

The procedures by which the public
may comment on a proposed Class II
penalty order, or participate in a Clean
Water Act Class II penalty proceeding,
are set forth in 40 CFR 22.45. The
deadline for submitting public comment
on this proposed final order is
November 13, 2001. All comments will
be transferred to the Environmental
Appeals Board (“EAB”) of EPA for
consideration. The powers and duties of
the EAB are outlined in 40 CFR 22.4(a).

Pursuant to CWA section 311(b)(6)(C),
EPA will not issue an order in this
proceeding prior to the close of the
public comment period.

List of Subjects

Environmental protection.

Dated: October 3, 2001.
David A. Nielsen,
Director, Multimedia Enforcement Division,
Office of Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance.
[FR Doc. 01-25741 Filed 10-11-01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6560-50-P

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION

SUNSHINE ACT MEETING

Pursuant to the provisions of the
“Government in the Sunshine Act” (5
U.S.C. 552b), notice is hereby given that
at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, October 9,
2001, the Board of Directors of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
met in closed session to consider
matters relating to the Corporation’s
corporate activities.

In calling the meeting, the Board
determined, on motion of Director Ellen
S. Seidman (Director, Office of Thrift
Supervision), seconded by Director John
M. Reich, and concurred in by Director
John D. Hawke, Jr. (Comptrolelr of the
Currency), and Chairman Donald E.
Powell, that Corporation business
required its consideration of the matters
on less than seven days’ notice to the
public; that no earlier notice of the
meeting was practicable; that the public
interest did not require consideration of
the matters in a meeting open to public
observation; and that the matters could
e considered in a closed meeting by
authority of subsections (c)(4), (c)(6),
(c)(9)(B), and (c)(10) of the “Government
in the Sunshine Act” (5 U.S.C.
552b(c)(4), (c)(6), (c)(9)(B), and (c)(10)).

The meeting was held in the Boad
Room of the FDIC Building located at
550—17th Street, NW., Washington, DC.

Dated: October 9, 2001.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
James D. LaPierre,
Deputy Executive Secretary.

[FR Doc. 01-25846 Filed 10-10—01; 11:45
am]|
BILLING CODE 6714-01-M

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Notice of Proposals to Engage in
Permissible Nonbanking Activities or
to Acquire Companies that are
Engaged in Permissible Nonbanking
Activities

The companies listed in this notice
have given notice under section 4 of the
Bank Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C.
1843) (BHC Act) and Regulation Y (12
CFR part 225) to engage de novo, or to
acquire or control voting securities or

assets of a company, including the
companies listed below, that engages
either directly or through a subsidiary or
other company, in a nonbanking activity
that is listed in § 225.28 of Regulation Y
(12 CFR 225.28) or that the Board has
determined by Order to be closely
related to banking and permissible for
bank holding companies. Unless
otherwise noted, these activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.

Each notice is available for inspection
at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated.
The notice also will be available for
inspection at the offices of the Board of
Governors. Interested persons may
express their views in writing on the
question whether the proposal complies
with the standards of section 4 of the
BHC Act. Additional information on all
bank holding companies may be
obtained from the National Information
Center website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding the applications must be
received at the Reserve Bank indicated
or the offices of the Board of Governors
not later than October 25, 2001.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis
(Randall C. Sumner, Vice President) 411
Locust Street, St. Louis, Missouri
63166—2034:

1. Lauderdale County Bancshares,
Inc., Halls, Tennessee; to engage de
novo through its subsidiary, Farmers
Crop Insurance Agency, Halls,
Tennessee, in insurance activities in a
place not exceeding 5,000 in
population, pursuant to
§ 225.28(b)(11)(iii) of Regulation Y.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, October 5, 2001.

Robert deV. Frierson,

Deputy Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 01-25642 Filed 10-11-01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-S

GENERAL SERVICES
ADMINISTRATION

Office of Communications;
Cancellation of an Optional Form by
the Department of State

AGENCY: Office of Communications,
GSA.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Department of State
cancelled the following Optional Form
because of low usage: OF 126, Foreign
Service Residence and Dependency
Report.

DATES: Effective October 12, 2001.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mr.
Charles Cunningham, Department of
State, (202) 312-9605.
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